Title of Meeting Contact Tracing Service Steering Group

Date 1 June 2020 at 1.00pm

Venue Fifth Floor Meeting Room, 12/22 Linenhall Street, Belfast

minutes

Present

Dr Elizabeth Mitchell
Dr Brid Farrell

Mr Alistair Finlay
Mrs Olive MaclLeod

Mr Seamus McAleavey

Mr Damian McAlister
Ms Vivian McConvey
Mrs Paula Smyth

Professor Hugo van Woerden -

Name Redacted

In Attendance

Name Redacted

.........

Name Redacted

Name Redacted

Name Redacted

Name Redacted

Name Redacted

Name Redacted

Apologies

Dr Gillian Armstrong 5_1 5

Name Redacted

Name Redacted

Name Redacted

Name Redacted

Wi Dan West
Mr Stephen Wilson

Chair

Public Health Agency (via video link)
Queen’s University (via video link)
Public Health Agency

NICVA (via video link) ,

Ulster University (via video link)
Patient Client Council (via video link)

= Business Services Organisation
_Public Health Agency
. Public Health Agency (via video link)

Department of Health (via telephone link)
Public Health Agency
Public Health Agency

- Department of Health
‘Department of Health

Public Health Agency (via video link)
Public Health Agency

“ _Public Health Agency
Public Health Agency

Public Health Agency

Department of Health

Executive Hub

Public Health Agency

Department of Health

Directorate of Legal Services, BSO
Department of Health

Public Health Agency

Please note that the order of the minutes reflects the order of the discussion

-|Page1]-

INQO000090797_0001



1.1

1.2

21

22

item 1 — Introductions

Dr Mitchell welcomed everyone to the meeting. Apologies were noted from Dr
Gillian Armstrong Name Redacted

| Name Redacted | M Dan Wést aind Mr Stephien Wilssh:

Dr Mitchell welcomed Dr Evelyn Collins from the Equality Commission to the
meeting.

Item 2 — Discussion on Equality with Dr Evelyn Collins, Chief Executive,
Equality Commission

Dr Collins thanked the Steering Group for the invitation to attend today’s
meeting. She noted that these are extraordinary times with extraordinary
measures having to be put in place, but at the same time the Equality
Commission has concerns about the equality impacts of some of the virus, its
spread and/or its treatment.. She appreciated that the Test, Trace and Protect
Strategy published on 27 May 2020 referenced human nghts and equalities
considerations being at the heart of the approach

Dr Collins reminded members that the Sectlon 75 duties have been in place for
over 20 years, they were established by the Northern Ireland Act 1998, and
they place a statutory duty on public bodies to have due regard to the need to
promote equality of opportunity in their decision making and to pay regard to
the desirability of promoting good relations. The Commission was encouraging
leadership of the effective implementation of the duties across the public
sector. She noted the speed with which the Northern Ireland Executive has
had to react in these circumstances and that the Commission appreciates that
this has meant that normal processes have not been adhered to. That said, the
Commission had been highlighting that the existing equality framework can
help public bodies with their planning and policy development and to ensure
they take equality considerations into account, to ensure their policies are

‘ _evidence-based. She said that there is a recognition that COVID-19 affects

2.3

24

older people more, affects BME groups more, affects poor people more,
although the latter was not a ground listed in s75 but exacerbated existing
inequalities, so it is important to ensure that equality considerations are at the
forefront of decision making.

Dr Collins stated that, even though there is an urgency in getting things
completed, public bodies should still ensure that there is a focus on

equality. Screening of policies was recommended as a tool to help public
bodies consider the equality implications, and this should start at the earliest
opportunity, with a written record taken of considerations. She added that
screening needs to be supported by good data, and that the Commission has
recently produced a guide, with NISRA, signposting data sources which may
be helpful.. She said that for this contact tracing programme an EQIA may be
necessary, but she understood that a full 12-week consultation may not be
possible.

Dr Collins said that, when considering screening for the potential equality

-|Page 2 |-

INQO000090797_0002



2.5

implications of the contact tracing strategy, she asked if there were potentially
barriers at the start of the process, i.e. do people know how to get a test, and
would this include people for whom English is not their first language, and also
how to reach blind, vulnerable and disabled people. Furthermore, if there is a
call centre element, she asked if there will be assistance for people with
hearing impairments. She also noted that there are concerns from deaf people
who lip read about being able to communicate if people are facing face
masks. She raised the issue of accessibility of any information to those who
may be required to self-isolate, was this clear enough for everyone? The
Commission understood that letters fo those who were required to shield were
up to 8 pages long. In terms of staff training, she sought clarity that staff would
understand issues on communication with a wide range of groups. She noted
that there will be a need for PHA to monitor the profile of those using the
service and those being contacted, this would provide valuable information
going forward. In respect of support and advice to employees and employers,
the Commission had a role in providing guidance for employers and employees
on equality matters generally, and would be happy to provide information about
the strategy and its implications in the employment setting, Finally, she noted
that the Commission understood a digital proxrmlty app is m development and
this may need a separate screening exercrse

NR updated members on progress Wlth the equality soreenlng which had
now commenced. He wanted to seek advice oh what was reasonable and
proportionate in the circumstances of a policy which began as a pilot while the
group is trying to respond to an emergency situation, but at the same time the
programme may be in place for up to 18 months. He advised that the first part
of the programme has already been implemented; and now it is being scaled
up so the first part of the screening is being carried out, but that in 6/12 months’
time the programme may be different. Dr Collins advised that the equality
duties are continuing duties and she suggested that the data obtained from the
pilot would be helpful in screening/assessing the equality impacts of the policy

i »gomg forward. !ndeed at each iteration there will be learning.

26|

2.7

2.8

___NR ’explalned that one element of the programme will be a call centre
and there has been discussion to ensure that this service is available for those
who are deaf. Dr Collins said that people with disabilities are anxious and
reiterated that the Iearning from each stage will be important.

Name Redacted sa|d that he found Dr Collins’ contribution to the meeting to be

very helpful and ‘that when considering the public health response, it is very
important to be mindful about health inequalities or else there will be blind
spots. He noted that dealing with health inequalities is at the forefront of the
Programme for Government. Ms McConvey added that given the digital
aspects of this programme, the success of it will depend on public involvement,
engagement and trust. She welcomed the suggestion of using the data coming
out of the pilot. She said that the public engagement must be clear and simple
for all groups.

Dr Mitchell said that she would hope to see mass media coverage regarding
the programme and had been talking to The Executive Office about a

-|Page 3 |-

INQO000090797_0003



2.9i

2.10

2.1

212

3.1

41

42

4.3

4.4

communications strategy for the programme. She advised that there is a
planned series of engagement events and that in addition to meeting with the
Equality Commission, the group also hopes to meet with the Older People’s
Commissioner and the Children’s Commissioner.

of the equality screemng She noted that during the pandemic a lot of
organisations have been working together in doing screenings.

Dr Mitchell explained that although there is a proximity app, a call centre is
being established for those who may not feel comfortable in the use of an app
or a digital platform. Dr Collins noted that there are privacy implications.

Dr Collins thanked the group for the oppoi‘tuhify to attend the meeting and
reiterated the offer of support and advice from the Commission going forward.

Dr Mitchell thanked Dr Collins and said that the beginniﬁg to end of the contact
tracing service should be looked at for equality implications, including the
support and referring people on when self-isolating; that monitoring would be
very important as recommended; and that hlghhghtmg the equality issues had
been very helpful. .

Iitem 3 — Minutes of 29 May meéting v

The minutes mf the previous m:eieting,: held on 29 Méy‘, were approved.

ltem 4 — U:p:dates on actions from :previous meetings

It was noted that all Of the actlons from the previous meeting had been
c:ompleted o v

Mr McAlister raiSed a cdhcem about not being able to recruit staff for the centre

if it is based in Ballymena. Mrs Smyth said that it is hoped that in the longer
term staff would be able to work remotely, but she was optimistic that the
required number of staff could be recruited.

Dr Mitchell asked!{ NR __ ifor an update on accommodation. k___NR

T 1 S emememmmemem e mmeme )

advised that the business case shared with the Steering Group was submitted
to DoH AEMB on Friday. AEMB have responded with a number of queries,
including seeking Land and Property Services (LPS) assurance on value for
money, and requiring a quotation for IT work not just a provisional estimate

by the end of the day. i.....NR ___: expressed concern about the level of detail
that was being requested by DoH AEMB under the current circumstances, and
that this will delay progression of the accommodation. Dr Mitchell agreed to
raise the issue with Dr McBride, to see if consideration and approval of the
business case could be expedited.

____________________________________________________

INQO00090797_0004



45

51

52|

has asked for confirmation regarding the Steering Group’s intentions, so that
work on the license can progress in parallel. Members confirmed their
approval that the vacant space on 1st floor in County Hall Ballymena should be
taken for the Contact Tracing service and agreed to the stated rent and

papers). i NR lagreed to respond to!__NR___iaccordingly, with the
caveat that this is dependent on approval of the business case. She added
that a floor plan has been prepared, and enabling IT works are being taken
forward.

..............................

___________ NR ialso addressed the issue of information governance, reminding
members that given the nature of the sensitive personal data involved in the
contact tracing service, it is critical that information governance issues are
considered and addressed at an early stage b'y'the clinical, operational and
digital leads. Dr Mitchel asked Mrs Macl eod and Professor Van Woerden to
ensure that their staff were fully engaged in taking forward the necessarv......._. :

mformatlon governance documents (mcludlng DP|AS DAAs and PNs).{ _NR

gurdance

Item 5 - Project management and Suipport v
Risk Register
""""" NR iadvised that the rrsk regrster has been updated and he moved onto

fhe issues Iog to prck up partrcular matters

Issues Log

_________ NR noted thatan analy’ucs paper had been prepared for foday’s meeting

(Issue 10) He said that with regard to project approvals (Issue 1d), further
information was bemg sought for the strategic context section of the business

’case

5.3

54

Wlthm the commumoatlons work (issue 1e),! NR isaid that the main
queries emanating from the engagement were around the app and seeking
more detail about the actual contact tracing itself. He asked about the work
that Big Motive had been doing. Mr Ritson suggested that they should be
invited to a future meeting. Dr Mitchell suggested that this could be on the
agenda for Friday’s meeting given that the Group is due to consider the report
on the pilot programme at Wednesday’s meeting. Mr Ritson agreed to contact
them to confirm this.

Action: ER to contact Big Motive

Dr Mitchell said that she would be keen to see the advertising work being done
in relation to contact tracing and she said that the Department of Health is
liaising with the Executive on this. Mrs MaclLeod advised that there had been a
meeting this morning where there had been discussion on the concerns about
contact tracing and thinking proactively about events where large numbers of
people could potentially gather and for the need to reinforce some of the

-|Page 5 |-

INQO00090797_0005



5.5

6.1

71}

messages around social distancing etc.; NR i suggested that for this

campaign there was a need to consider havmg a weII -respected figure at the
front of the campaign.

Mrs Smyth raised a concern about whether there had been engagement with
Trusts regarding contact tracing of the workforce and the impact this could
have on capacity. Dr Mitchell advised that while health protection was carrying
out non-work contacts, the HSC would be following up on its own health
workplace contacts. Professor van Woerden added that it would up to the
Trusts to do this as there would be established infection prevention controls for
these types of circumstances, but that the Public Health Agency would provide
advice as required so as not to breach normal protocols. It was agreed that Dr
Mitchell would raise this with the Chief Medical Officer, Mrs MaclLeod would
speak to Mrs Watts to raise this with HSC Trust Chief Executives, and Mrs
Smyth would raise it with Directors of Human Resources

Action: LM to speak to CMO

Action: OMacL to speak to VW and HSC Trust Chtef Executives

Action: PS to speak to Dlrectors of Human Resources

ltem 6 — Department of Health update

There was no Department of Health update

ltem 7 - Pilot / Transmon ;Update o
Metrics
Name Eé&éfjfd Ejoined the meeting for this item. He informed members

that over the last 24 hours a total of 11 new cases had been added to the
database, with 15 calls made to cases and 23 to contacts from those cases.
Over the last week, he outlined that 207 cases had been added to the
database, with 176 phone contacts made to those 207 and 302 phone calls

‘ _made to contacts. He advised that Northern Ireland’s success rate in this

7.2

7.3

regiard is higher 'than that of England

hours of a p05|tlve test outcome. | Name Redacted isaid that he did not have this
information, but he suggested that it was highly likely. Mrs MaclLeod noted that
at this moment it is not easy to obtain this type of information, but that once the
new system is up and running, it will be possible. Dr Mitchell said that it would
be useful to have an update in advance of the oversight board meeting she is

due to attend tomorrow.

Mrs MaclLeod advised members that further work is needed to look at how the
centre will need to flex up and down as some days only 2 staff may be
required, but on other days it could be 9 staff. She suggested that staff may be
put on an “on call” rota.

-|Page 6 |-

INQO00090797_0006



8.1

8.2

8.3

84 |

8.5 |:

8;5

871

ltem 8 — Phase 2 Update
Accommodation

This was covered under ltem 4 above.
HR — Business Case

This was covered under ltem 4 above.
Training

Dr Mitchell said that equality issues and data ptdfection should be included as
part of the training for staff working in the _c_entj‘e.

Analytics / Metrics

previously been devised by __________________ NR ¢ He said that there could be

additional metrics used, such as the median caII length, which are being used
by Public Health England, so this would requwe consideration by PHA.

i NR__outlined other pos&lble measures mcludlng the number of contacts
who subsequently became cases, and the number of those who are
successfully contacted and how long it takes people to become symptomatic
after being advised to self-isolate. Furthermore, he said that it would be useful
to measure the length 0f tlme after symptoms to the receipt of a swab in the

Iaboratory

:Professor van Woerden said that lt will be |mpor‘tant to get an evaluation of the

____________ NE_______adwsed that the Rt number is currently being worked out by Dr lan
Young’s group, but he said that there needs to be clarity in terms of who is
determining the Rt number and who it is being reported to. Professor van
Woerden said that there is a need to join up different groups. Dr Mitchell
advised that she was intending to join Professor Young'’s scientific group

meeting on Thursday to discuss the contact tracing service and she proposed

that: NR :also joined this meeting. | NR____isuggested that when Epi-

Info is up and running, PHA could work out its own Rt number. He said that

there is a large amount of data that could be used to work out the Rt number,
but there are many groups carrying out similar work and therefore duplication
of effort. He said that the health protection team in PHA will be using data to

identify clusters.

-|Page 7 |-

INQO000090797_0007



8.8 |i NR isaid that the SPI-M group have capacity to do modelling, but they
d6 not have any particular interest at this moment in contact tracing. He added
that the Joint Biosecurity Centre is looking at 1-7 day forward modelling, but he
queried what level of detail this will involve, why they are doing, who it is for,
and how useful will be.

8.9 ... .NR___ isaid that any research carried out should have the appropriate
approvals. Professor van Woerden agreed to speak to Dr Janice Bailie
regarding this.

8.10 | NR _iraised an issue around ongoing support for Epi-Info and

___________________________

development work going forward He moved oh to discuss the dataset and felt

negative impact on responses. |____| NR suggested that this would be an
opportune time to see if equahty is embedded into the new system. Professor
van Woerden said that rather than ask for an individual’s ethnicity this
information could be gleaned from their native language or by running an
algorithm on first names. Mrs MaclLeod asked why this information is required.
Dr Mitchell said that it can allow PHA to carry out monitoring as per the request
of the Equality Commission. Ms McConvey suggested that to resolve this
issue, PHA should take up the offer made by the Equality Commission earlier
in the meeting to work with them.. .

8.11 |L_...NR_____isaid that clarity erl be needed in terms of how clusters are
reported. He said that PHA may be asked to produce data on where clusters

MacLeod sald that clusters should be reported to the Duty Room. NR

said that it could elther be the Duty Room or RQIA for care homes

9 ltem 9 Drgltal Update
9..1: :There was no dlgltal update,
10 Itern 10 - Comm‘ur\i:c:ationzs EUpdate
10.1 | There was no comm;u?nications update.
11| Item 11— Te:stéing::Update
11.1 | There was no update on testing.

12 | ltem 12 — Any Other Business

12.1 | Dr Mitchell outlined some key targets that should be achieved by the end of

June:
¢ Contact tracing centre set up in County Hall
¢ NI Direct service up and running
¢ |ssues around Epi-Info resolved
e A Northern Ireland version of CTAS in operation

-|Page 8 | -

INQO00090797_0008



¢ Any NICS staff available for redeployment in analytics brought on board
e Equality Screening completed

13 | ltem 13 — Date of Next Meeting

13.1 | The next meeting of the group will take place on Wednesday 3 June at 1pm in
Linenhall Street.

-|Page 9 |-

INQO00090797_0009



